Discovering Nutrition

000.LC 24 200

Sixth Edition

Paul Insel Don Ross Kimberley McMahon Melissa Bernstein

Discovering NUTTION

Sixth Edition

Paul Insel Stanford University

Don Ross California Institute of Human Nutrition

Kimberley McMahon

Melissa Bernstein

Chicago Medical School





World Headquarters Jones & Bartlett Learning 5 Wall Street Burlington, MA 01803 978-443-5000 info@jblearning.com www.jblearning.com

Jones & Bartlett Learning books and products are available through most bookstores and online booksellers. To contact Jones & Bartlett Learning directly, call 800-832-0034, fax 978-443-8000, or visit our website, www.jblearning.com.

Substantial discounts on bulk quantities of Jones & Bartlett Learning publications are available to corporations, professional associations, and other qualified organizations. For details and specific discount information, contact the special sales department at Jones & Bartlett Learning via the above contact information or send an email to specialsales@jblearning.com.

Copyright © 2019 by Jones & Bartlett Learning, LLC, an Ascend Learning Company

All rights reserved. No part of the material protected by this copyright may be reproduced or utilized in any form, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, or by any information storage and retrieval system, without written permission from the copyright owner.

The content, statements, views, and opinions herein are the sole expression of the respective authors and not that of Jones & Bartlett Learning, LLC. Reference herein to any specific commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise does not constitute or imply its endorsement or recommendation by Jones & Bartlett Learning, LLC and such reference shall not be used for advertising or product endorsement purposes. All trademarks displayed are the trademarks of the parties noted herein. *Discovering Nutrition, Sixth Edition* is an independent publication and has not been authorized, sponsored, or otherwise approved by the owners of the trademarks or service marks referenced in this product.

There may be images in this book that feature models; these models do not necessarily endorse, represent, or participate in the activities represented in the images. Any screenshots in this product are for educational and instructive purposes only. Any individuals and scenarios featured in the case studies throughout this product may be real or fictitious, but are used for instructional purposes only.

13956-3

Production Credits

VP, Product Management: David D. Cella Director of Product Management: Cathy L. Esperti Product Manager: Sean Fabery Senior Developmental Editor: Jennifer Angel Associate Production Editor: Rachel DiMaggio Associate Production Editor: Jamie Reynolds Director of Marketing: Andrea DeFronzo VP, Manufacturing and Inventory Control: Therese Connell Composition: SourceHOV LLC Cover and Text Design: Kristin E. Parker Director of Rights & Media: Joanna Gallant Rights & Media Specialist: Merideth Tumasz Media Development Editor: Shannon Sheehan Cover Image: © Greentellect Studio/Shutterstock Printing and Binding: LSC Communications Cover Printing: LSC Communications

Library of Congress Cataloging-in-Publication Data

Names: Insel, Paul M., author. | Ross, Don, 1952-, author. | McMahon, Kimberley, author. | Bernstein, Melissa, author.
Title: Discovering nutrition / Paul Insel, Don Ross, Kimberley McMahon, Melissa Bernstein.
Description: Sixth edition. | Burlington, MA : Jones & Bartlett Learning, [2019] | Includes bibliographical references and index.
Identifiers: LCCN 2017039397 | ISBN 9781284139464 (paperback)
Subjects: | MESH: Nutritional Physiological Phenomena | Diet Classification: LCC QP141 | NLM QU 145 | DDC 613.2–dc23 LC record available at https://lccn.loc.gov/2017039397

6048

 Printed in the United States of America

 22
 21
 20
 19
 18
 10
 9
 8
 7
 6
 5
 4
 3
 2
 1

Brief Contents

المري المحال المحال

Chapter 1	Food Choices: Nutrients and Nourishment 2
Chapter 2	Nutrition Guidelines: Tools for a Healthful Diet 32
Chapter 3	The Human Body: From Food to Fuel 68
Chapter 4	Carbohydrates: Simple Sugars and Complex Chains 102
	Spotlight on Alcohol 134
Chapter 5	Lipids: Not Just Fat 160
Chapter 6	Proteins and Amino Acids: Function Follows Form 198
Chapter 7	Vitamins: Vital Keys to Health 238
	Spotlight on Dietary Supplements and Functional Foods 292
Chapter 8	Water and Minerals: The Ocean Within 324
	Spotlight on Metabolism and Energy Balance 378
Chapter 9	Nutrition for Physical Performance 428
	Spotlight on Eating Disorders 466
Chapter 10	Diet and Health 492
	Spotlight on Obesity and Weight Management 538
Chapter 11	Life Cycle: Maternal and Infant Nutrition 582
Chapter 12	Life Cycle: From Childhood to Adulthood 628
	Spotlight on World Nutrition: The Faces of Global Malnutrition 666
Chapter 13	Food Safety and Technology: Microbial Threats and Genetic Engineering 692

Contents

Preface xv About the Authors xxiv Contributors xxv Reviewers xxvii Acknowledgments xxxi

Chapter 1 Food Choices: Nutrients and Nourishment 2

Why Do We Eat the Way We Do? 3

Personal Preferences 4 Sensory Influences: Taste, Smell, and Texture 5 Emotional and Cognitive Influences 5 Environment 8 Social-Ecological Model 9 The Standard American Diet 10 FYI: Food and Culture 12

Introducing the Nutrients 12

Definition of Nutrients 13 Carbohydrates 15

Lipids 15 Proteins 16 Vitamins 16 Minerals 16 Water 17 Nutrients and Energy 17 Energy in Foods 18 Diet and Health 19

Applying the Scientific Process to Nutrition 20

From Research Study to Headline 23

Publishing Experimental Results 23 From Journals to the Public 24 Sorting Facts and Fallacies in the Media 24 FYI: The Affordable Care Act and Nutrition 27

Learning Portfolio 28

Key Terms 28 Study Points 28 Study Questions 29 Try This 29 Getting Personal 29 References 30

Chapter 2 Nutrition Guidelines: Tools for a Healthful Diet 32

Linking Nutrients, Foods, and Health 34

Adequacy 34 Balance 35 Calorie Control 35 Nutrient Density 35 Moderation 36 Variety 37

Dietary Guidelines 38

Dietary Guidelines for Americans 38 Canada's Food Guide 43

FYI: MyPlate: Foods, Serving Sizes, and Tips 44

Using MyPlate or *Canada's Food Guide* in Diet Planning 48

FYI: Portion Distortion 51

Recommendations for Nutrient Intake: The DRIs 51

Understanding Dietary Standards 51 A Brief History of Dietary Standards 52 Dietary Reference Intakes 52 Use of Dietary Standards 54

Food Labels 55

Ingredients and Other Basic Information 56 Nutrition Facts Panel 57 Daily Values 59 Nutrient Content Claims 59 Health Claims 60 Structure/Function Claims 61

FYI: Definitions for Nutrient Content Claims on Food Labels 62

Using Labels to Make Healthful Food Choices 63

Learning Portfolio 65

Key Terms 65 Study Points 65 Study Questions 65 Try This 66 Getting Personal 66 References 67

Chapter 3 The Human Body: From Food to Fuel 68

The Gastrointestinal Tract 69

Organization of the GI Tract 71

Overview of Digestion: Physical and Chemical Processes 72

The Physical Movement and Breakdown of Food 72 The Chemical Breakdown of Food 72

Overview of Absorption 74

The Roads to Nutrient Absorption 74

Accessory Organs 76

Salivary Glands 76 Liver 76 Gallbladder 77 Pancreas 77

Putting It All Together: Digestion and Absorption 77

Mouth 77 Stomach 78 Small Intestine 80 Large Intestine 81 Gut Microbiota 83

FYI: Gut Microbiota Out of Whack? Pre- and Probiotics May Help 84

Circulation of Nutrients 84

Vascular System 84 Lymphatic System 85 Excretion and Elimination 86

Signaling Systems: Command, Control, and Defense 86

Nervous System 86 Hormonal System 87 Immune System 87

Influences on Digestion and Absorption 88

Psychological Influences 88 Chemical Influences 88 Bacterial Influences 88

Nutrition and GI Disorders 89

Constipation 89 Diarrhea 90 Diverticulosis 92 Heartburn and Gastroesophageal Reflux Disease 93 Irritable Bowel Syndrome 93 Colorectal Cancer 94 Gas 94 Ulcers 95

Learning Portfolio 98

Key Terms 98 Study Points 99 Study Questions 99 Try This 99 Getting Personal 99 References 100

Chapter 4

Carbohydrates: Simple Sugars and Complex Chains 102

What Are Carbohydrates? 103

Simple Sugars 104

Monosaccharides: The Single Sugars 104 Disaccharides: The Double Sugars 105

Complex Carbohydrates 106

Oligosaccharides 106 Polysaccharides 106

Carbohydrate Digestion and Absorption 111

Digestion of Carbohydrates 111 Absorption 113

Carbohydrates in the Body 113

Roles of Glucose 114 Regulating Blood Glucose Levels 115 FYI: Is the Glycemic Index a Useful Tool for Constructing a

Healthy Diet with Carbohydrates? 117

The Role of Carbohydrates in Our Diet 119

Recommended Intake of Carbohydrate 119 Current Consumption: How Much Carbohydrate Do You Eat? 120 Choosing Carbohydrates Wisely 120 Fiber in Our Diet 121 Moderating Added Sugar Intake 122 FYI: Excessive Sugar in the American Diet 123

Carbohydrates and Health 125

Fiber and Obesity 125 Fiber and Type 2 Diabetes 126 Fiber and Cardiovascular Disease 126
Negative Health Effects of Excess Fiber 126
Health Effects of Sugar: Causation or Correlation? 127
Sugar and Dental Caries 128
Health Effects of Artificial Sweeteners 129

Learning Portfolio 131

Key Terms 131 Study Points 131 Study Questions 132 Try This 132 References 132

Spotlight on Alcohol 134

Alcohol in Context 135

History of Alcohol Use 136 The Character of Alcohol 136 Is Alcohol a Nutrient? 136 Alcohol and Its Sources 138

Alcohol in the Body 139

Alcohol Absorption 139 Removing Alcohol from Circulation 140 Individual Differences in Alcohol Breakdown 142

When Alcohol Becomes a Problem 143

Alcohol in the Brain and the Nervous System 143

FYI: Changing the Culture of Campus Drinking 146

Alcohol's Effect on the Gastrointestinal System 147 Alcohol and the Liver 148 Fetal Alcohol Syndrome 148

Alcoholics and Malnutrition 150

Poor Diet 150 Vitamin Deficiencies 150 Mineral Deficiencies 150 Macronutrients 151 FYI: Myths About Alcohol 151

Body Weight 152

Does Alcohol Have Benefits? 152

Learning Portfolio 157

Key Terms 157 Study Points 157 Study Questions 157 Try This 157 References 157

Chapter 5 Lipids: Not Just Fat 160

What Are Lipids? 162

Fatty Acids Are Key Building Blocks 162

Chain Length 162 Saturation 162 Cis Versus Trans 165 Omega-3 and Omega-6 Fatty Acids 165

Triglycerides 166

Triglyceride Structure 166 Triglyceride Functions 167 Triglycerides in Food 169

FYI: Fats on the Health Food Store Shelf 170

Phospholipids 172

Phospholipid Structure172Phospholipid Functions172Phospholipids in Food173

Sterols 174

Cholesterol Functions 174 Cholesterol Synthesis 174 Sterols in Food 174 FYI: Which Spread for Your Bread? 175

rii. Wilcii spreau for four breau: 175

Lipid Digestion and Absorption 176

Lipid Digestion 177 Lipid Absorption 178 Digestion and Absorption of Sterols 180

Transportation of Lipids in the Body 180

Chylomicrons 181 Very-Low-Density Lipoproteins 181 Intermediate-Density Lipoproteins 181 Low-Density Lipoproteins 182 High-Density Lipoproteins 182

Recommendations for Fat Intake 182

Recommendations for Omega Fatty Acid Intake 185 Current Dietary Intakes 186 Fat Replacers: What Are They? Are They Safe? Do They Save Calories? 187

FYI: Does Reduced Fat Reduce Calories? Don't Count on It! 188

Lipids and Health 189

Health Effects of Omega Fatty Acids 189 Heart Disease 190 Obesity 191 Metabolic Syndrome 192 Cancer 192 Putting It All Together 192

Learning Portfolio 194

Key Terms 194 Study Points 194 Study Questions 195 Try This 195 References 196

Chapter 6

Proteins and Amino Acids: Function Follows Form 198

Why Is Protein Important? 199

Amino Acids Are the Building Blocks of Proteins 200

Amino Acids Are Identified by Their Side Groups 201
Protein Structure: Unique Three-Dimensional Shapes and Functions 201
Protein Denaturation: Destabilizing a Protein's Shape 202

Functions of Body Proteins 203

FYI: Scrabble Anyone? 203

Structural and Mechanical Functions 204 Immune Function 204 Enzymes 205 Hormones 206 Acid–Base Balance 206 Transport Functions 207 Fluid Balance 207 Source of Energy and Glucose 208

Protein Digestion and Absorption 208

Protein Digestion 208 Undigested Protein 210 Amino Acid and Peptide Absorption 210

Proteins in the Body 211

Protein Synthesis 211 FYI: Celiac Disease and Gluten Sensitivity 211

The Amino Acid Pool and Protein Turnover 212 Synthesis of Nonprotein Molecules 212 Protein and Nitrogen Excretion 213 Nitrogen Balance 214

Proteins in the Diet 215

Recommended Intakes of Protein 215

FYI: Do Athletes Need More Protein? 217

Protein Consumption 218 Protein Quality 218 Proteins and Amino Acids as Additives and Supplements 220

FYI: High-Protein Plant Foods 221

Vegetarian Eating Patterns 223

Why People Become Vegetarians223Types of Vegetarian Diets224Health Benefits of Vegetarian Diets224Health Risks of Vegetarian Diets225Dietary Recommendations for Vegetarians225

The Health Effects of Too Little or Too Much Protein 227

Protein-Energy Malnutrition 227 FYI: High-Protein Diets and Supplements 228

Health Effects of Excess Dietary Protein 230

Learning Portfolio 234

Key Terms 234 Study Points 234 Study Questions 234 Try This 235 Getting Personal 235 References 236

Chapter 7 Vitamins: Vital Keys to Health 238

Understanding Vitamins 239

Fat-Soluble Versus Water-Soluble Vitamins240Food Preparation Affects Vitamins in Foods242

FYI: Fresh, Frozen, or Canned? Raw, Dried, or Cooked? 243

The Fat-Soluble Vitamins 244

Vitamin A and Carotenoids 244

Forms of Vitamin A 244 Functions of Vitamin A 245 Dietary Recommendations for Vitamin A 247 Sources of Vitamin A 248 Vitamin A Deficiency 249 Vitamin A Toxicity 250 The Carotenoids 250 Functions of Carotenoids 251 Food Sources and Absorption of Carotenoids 252 Carotenoid Supplementation 253

Vitamin D 253

Forms and Formation of Vitamin D 253 Functions of Vitamin D 254 Dietary Recommendations for Vitamin D 255 Sources of Vitamin D 255 Vitamin D Deficiency 256 Vitamin D and Other Conditions 257 Vitamin D Toxicity 257

Vitamin E 258

Forms of Vitamin E 258 Functions of Vitamin E 258 Dietary Recommendations for Vitamin E 258 Sources of Vitamin E 260 Vitamin E Deficiency 261 Vitamin E Toxicity 261

Vitamin K 261

Functions of Vitamin K 262 Dietary Recommendations for Vitamin K 262 Sources of Vitamin K 262 Vitamin K Deficiency 262 Vitamin K Toxicity 263

The Water-Soluble Vitamins: Eight Bs and a C 264

Thiamin 265

Functions of Thiamin 265 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Thiamin 265 Thiamin Deficiency 266 Thiamin Toxicity 267

Riboflavin 267

Functions of Riboflavin 267 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Riboflavin 267 Riboflavin Deficiency 268 Riboflavin Toxicity 268

Niacin 269

Functions of Niacin 269 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Niacin 269 Niacin Deficiency 270 Niacin Toxicity and Medicinal Uses of Niacin 270

Vitamin B₆ 271

Functions of Vitamin B₆ 271 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Vitamin B₆ 272 Vitamin B₆ Deficiency 272 Vitamin B₆ Toxicity and Medicinal Uses of Vitamin B₆ 273

Folate 273

Functions of Folate 273 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Folate 273 Folate Deficiency 275 Folate Toxicity 276

Vitamin B₁₂ 276

Functions of Vitamin B_{12} 276 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Vitamin B_{12} 276 Absorption of Vitamin B_{12} 277 Vitamin B_{12} Deficiency 277 Vitamin B_{12} Toxicity 278

Pantothenic Acid 279

Functions of Pantothenic Acid 279 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Pantothenic Acid 279 Pantothenic Acid Deficiency 279 Pantothenic Acid Toxicity 279

Biotin 279

Functions of Biotin 279 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Biotin 279 Biotin Deficiency 280 Biotin Toxicity 280

Choline: A Vitamin-Like Substance 280

Vitamin C 281

Functions of Vitamin C 281 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Vitamin C 282 Vitamin C Deficiency 282 Vitamin C Toxicity 283

Conditional Nutrients 285

Learning Portfolio 287

Key Terms 287 Study Points 287 Study Questions 288 Try This 288 Getting Personal 289 References 289

Spotlight on Dietary Supplements and Functional Foods 292

Dietary Supplements: Vitamins and Minerals 293

Moderate Supplementation 294 Megadoses in Conventional Medical Management 300 Megadosing Beyond Conventional Medicine: Orthomolecular Nutrition 300 Drawbacks of Megadoses 301

ix

Dietary Supplements: Natural Health Products 302

Helpful Herbs, Harmful Herbs 302 Other Dietary Supplements 304

Dietary Supplements in the Marketplace 305

The FTC and Supplement Advertising 305 The FDA and Supplement Regulation 305 Supplement Labels 306 Canadian Regulations 306 Choosing Dietary Supplements 307 Fraudulent Products 308

FYI: Shopping for Supplements 309

Functional Foods 310

Phytochemicals Make Foods Functional 310
Foods Enhanced with Functional Ingredients and Additives 316
Regulatory Issues for Functional Foods 316
Health Claims for Functional Foods 317
Structure/Function Claims for Functional Foods 317
Strategies for Functional Food Use 318

FYI: Defining Complementary and Integrative Health: How Does Nutrition Fit? 319

Learning Portfolio 321

Key Terms 321 Study Points 321 Study Questions 321 Try This 322 Getting Personal 322 References 322

Chapter 8 Water and Minerals: The Ocean Within 324

Water: Crucial to Life 325

Electrolytes and Water: A Delicate Balance 325 Functions of Water 326

Intake Recommendations: How Much Water Is Enough? 327

Water Excretion: Where Does the Water Go? 328

Water Balance 328 Alcohol, Caffeine, and Common Medications Affect Fluid Balance 329 Dehydration 329 FYI: Tap, Filtered, or Bottled: Which Water Is Best? 330

Water Intoxication 331

Minerals 332

Minerals in Foods 333 Bioavailability 333

Major Minerals and Health 333

Sodium 333

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Sodium 334 Dealing with Excess Sodium 334

Potassium 335

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Potassium 336 When Potassium Balance Goes Awry 336

Chloride 337

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Chloride 337 Who Risks Chloride Deficiency? 338

Calcium 338

Functions of Calcium 338 Regulation of Blood Calcium Levels 339 Dietary Recommendations for Calcium 339 Sources of Calcium 340 Calcium Absorption 340

FYI: Calcium Supplements: Are They Right for You? 341

When Calcium Balance Goes Awry 342

Phosphorus 342

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Phosphorus 342 When Phosphate Balance Goes Awry 343

Magnesium 344

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Magnesium 344 When Magnesium Balance Goes Awry 344

Sulfur 345

Trace Minerals 346

Iron 347

Functions of Iron 347 Regulation of Iron in the Body 348 Dietary Recommendations for Iron 350 Sources of Iron 350 Iron Deficiency 351 Iron Toxicity 352

Zinc 353

Functions of Zinc 353 FYI: Zinc and the Common Cold 354 Regulation of Zinc in the Body 355 Dietary Recommendations for Zinc 355 Sources of Zinc 355 Zinc Deficiency 356 Zinc Toxicity 356

Selenium 357

Functions of Selenium 357 Absorption and Excretion of Selenium 357 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Selenium 357 Selenium Deficiency and Toxicity 358

lodine 359

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Iodine 359 Iodine Deficiency 360 Iodine Toxicity 361

Copper 361

Copper Absorption and Storage 361 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Copper 361 Copper Deficiency 362 Copper Toxicity 362

Manganese 362

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Manganese 363 Manganese Deficiency and Toxicity 363

Fluoride 364

Functions of Fluoride 364 Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Fluoride 364 When Fluoride Balance Goes Awry 365 The Fluoridation Debate 365

Chromium 366

Dietary Recommendations and Sources of Chromium 366 Chromium Deficiency and Toxicity 366

Molybdenum 366

Other Trace Minerals and Ultratrace Minerals 367

Arsenic 367 Boron 367 Nickel 367 Silicon 371 Vanadium 371

Learning Portfolio 373

Key Terms 373 Study Points 373 Study Questions 374 Getting Personal 374 Try This 375 References 375

Spotlight on Metabolism and Energy Balance 378

Energy: Fuel for Work 379

Transferring Food Energy to Cellular Energy 380

What Is Metabolism? 380

The Cell Is the Metabolic Processing Center 382 Who Are the Key Energy Players? 383

Breakdown and Release of Energy 385

Extracting Energy from Carbohydrate 385 FYI: Lactate Is Not a Metabolic Dead End 389 Extracting Energy from Fat 392 Extracting Energy from Protein 394

Alcohol Metabolism 396

Metabolizing Small Amounts of Alcohol 396 Metabolizing Large Amounts of Alcohol 397

Biosynthesis and Storage 398

Making Carbohydrate (Glucose) 398 Making Fat (Fatty Acids) 400 Making Ketone Bodies 401 Making Protein (Amino Acids) 401

Special States 402

Feasting 402 Fasting 403

Energy Balance: Finding Your Equilibrium 406

Energy In 407

Hunger, Satiation, and Satiety 408 Appetite 408 Control by Committee 408

Energy Out: Fuel Uses 412

Major Components of Energy Expenditure 412 Estimating Total Energy Expenditure 415 FYI: What's Neat About NEAT? 416

DRIs for Energy: Estimated Energy Requirements 418 FYI: How Many Calories Do I Burn? 418

Body Composition: Understanding Fatness and Weight 419

Assessing Body Weight 419

Assessing Body Fatness 421 Body Fat Distribution 422

Learning Portfolio 424

Key Terms 424 Study Points 424 Study Questions 425 Try This 426 References 426

Chapter 9 Nutrition for Physical Performance 428

Nutrition and Physical Performance 429

Exercise Intensity 432 Muscle Strengthening Exercises 432 Flexibility and Neuromotor Exercises 432 Some Is Better Than None 432

Energy Systems, Muscles, and Physical Performance 434

ATP-CP Energy System 434 Lactic Acid Energy System 435 Oxygen Energy System 435 Teamwork in Energy Production 435 Glycogen Depletion 436 Endurance Training 437 Muscles and Muscle Fibers 438

Optimal Nutrition for Exercise Performance 439

Before: Fuel and Hydration 440 Before Exercising 440 During: Slowing Fluid and Energy Loss 440 After: Time to Replenish (the Sooner, the Better) 440 After Exercising 440 Nutrition for the Competitive Athlete 441

Fluid Needs During Extensive Exercise 441

Hydration 442 Muscle Cramps 443 FYI: When Are Sports Drinks Recommended? 444

Energy Intake and Exercise 444

Carbohydrate and Exercise 445

Pre-exercise Carbohydrate Intake 447 Carbohydrate Intake During Exercise 448 Postexercise Carbohydrate Intake 448

Dietary Fat and Exercise 448

Fat Intake and the Athlete 449

Protein and Exercise 449

Protein Recommendations for Athletes 449 Timing Protein Intake with Exercise 450 Optimal Protein Sources for Athletes 450 Dangers of High Protein Intake 450

FYI: Nutrition Periodization: Tailoring Nutrition Intake to Exercise Goals 451

Vitamins, Minerals, and Exercise Performance 452

B Vitamins 452 Calcium 452 Iron 452 Vitamin D 453 Other Trace Minerals 453

The Vegetarian Athlete 454

Nutrition Needs of Youth in Sport 455

Nutrition Supplements and Ergogenic Aids 455

Concerns About Supplements and Ergogenic Aids 456

Weight and Body Composition 458

Weight Gain: Build Muscle, Lose Fat 459
Weight Loss: The Panacea for Optimal Performance? 459
Weight Loss: Negative Consequences for the Competitive Athlete? 460

Learning Portfolio 463

Key Terms 463 Study Points 463 Study Questions 464 Try This 464 References 464

Spotlight on Eating Disorders 466

The Eating Disorder Continuum 468

Body Image 468 Eating Disorders Defined 469 Health Consequences of Eating Disorders 471

FYI: Night-Eating Syndrome: Not an Eating Disorder, but Sometimes a Concern 471

Prevalence of Eating Disorders 472

No Simple Causes 473

The Cultural-Psychological Interaction 473 Biological Factors 474

A Closer Look at Anorexia Nervosa 474

FYI: Exploring the Connection Between Negative Affect and Eating Disorders 474

Warning Signs of Anorexia Nervosa 475 Treatment for Anorexia Nervosa 476

A Closer Look at Bulimia Nervosa 478

Warning Signs of Bulimia Nervosa 478 Treatment for Bulimia Nervosa 479

A Closer Look at Binge-Eating Disorder 480

Warning Signs of Binge-Eating Disorder 480 FYI: Diary of an Eating Disorder 480

Treatment for Binge-Eating Disorder 481

Eating Disorders: Specific Populations 482

Males: An Overlooked Population 482 Athletes 483 The Female Athlete Triad 483

Combating Eating Disorders 485

Learning Portfolio 488

Key Terms 488 Study Points 488 Study Questions 488 Try This 488 Getting Personal 489 References 489

Chapter 10 Diet and Health 492

Nutrition and Chronic Disease 493

Nutrition Informatics 494 Healthy People 2020 494 Health Disparities 494 Obesity, Physical Inactivity, and Chronic Disease 495 Dietary Components and Cardiometabolic Disease 496

Genetics and Disease 497

The Workings of DNA and Genes 498

Cardiovascular Disease 499

The Cardiovascular System and Cardiovascular Disease 500 What Is Atherosclerosis? 500 Risk Factors for Atherosclerosis 501 Putting It All Together 507

Hypertension 508

What Is Blood Pressure? 508 What Is Hypertension? 509 Stress and Hypertension 509 Risk Factors for Hypertension 510 Dietary and Lifestyle Factors for Reducing Hypertension 510 Putting It All Together 512

Cancer 513

What Is Cancer? 513 Risk Factors for Cancer 514 Dietary and Lifestyle Factors for Reducing Cancer Risk 515 Putting It All Together 518

Diabetes Mellitus 519

What Is Diabetes? 519
Low Blood Glucose Levels: Hypoglycemia 523
Risk Factors for Diabetes 523
Dietary and Lifestyle Factors for Reducing Diabetes Risk 525

FYI: Nutrition, Health, and Wellness Coaching 525

Management of Diabetes 526 Nutrition 526 Putting It All Together 527

Metabolic Syndrome 527

Osteoporosis 528

What Is Osteoporosis? 528
Risk Factors for Osteoporosis 529
Dietary and Lifestyle Factors for Reducing Osteoporosis Risk 529
Putting It All Together 531

Learning Portfolio 533

Key Terms 533 Study Points 533 Study Questions 534 Try This 534 Getting Personal 534 References 534

Spotlight on Obesity and Weight Management 538

The Obesity Epidemic 539

Factors in the Development of Obesity 542

Biological Factors 542 Social and Environmental Factors 544 FYI: U.S. Obesity Trends: 1985 to 2015 547

FYI: Does Our Environment Make Us Fat? 549 Lifestyle and Behavior Factors 550 FYI: Is Food Addiction Real? 551

Childhood Overweight 553

FYI: Childhood and Teenage Obesity: "The First Generation That Does Not Outlive Its Parents" 554

Health Risks of Overweight and Obesity 556

Weight Cycling 558

Obesity Is a Preventable National Crisis 558

Weight Management 559

FYI: Can Medicines Lead to Obesity?560The Perception of Weight560What Goals Should I Set?561Adopting a Healthy Weight-Management Lifestyle562Diet and Eating Habits563Physical Activity565

FYI: Learning Weight Management from Some of the "Biggest" Weight Experts: Sumo Wrestlers 565

Thinking and Emotions 566 Weight-Management Approaches 568 FYI: Behaviors That Will Help You Manage Your Weight 570

Underweight 575

Causes and Assessment 575 Weight-Gain Strategies 576

Learning Portfolio 578

Key Terms 578 Study Points 578 Study Questions 578 Try This 579 References 579

Chapter 11 Life Cycle: Maternal and Infant Nutrition 582

Nutrition Before Conception 583

Weight 584 Vitamins 585 Substance Use 587

Physiology of Pregnancy 587

Stages of Human Fetal Growth 587 Maternal Physiological Changes and Nutrition 588 Maternal Weight Gain 590 Energy and Nutrition During Pregnancy 592 Nutrients to Support Pregnancy 592

FYI: Vegetarianism and Pregnancy 594

Food Choices for Pregnant Women 596 Substance Use and Pregnancy Outcome 598 Special Situations During Pregnancy 598

Lactation 601

Breastfeeding Trends 601 Physiology of Lactation 602 Nutrition for Breastfeeding Women 603 Practices to Avoid During Lactation 605 Benefits of Breastfeeding 605 Contraindications to Breastfeeding 607 Resources for Pregnant and Lactating Women and Their Children 607

Infancy 608

Infant Growth and Development 608 Energy and Nutrient Needs During Infancy 610 Newborn Breastfeeding 613 Alternative Feeding: Infant Formula 613 Breast Milk or Formula: How Much Is Enough? 615 Feeding Technique 615 Introduction of Solid Foods into the Infant's Diet 615

FYI: New Guidelines for Introducing Peanut Products 616

Developmental Readiness for Solid Foods 616 Feeding Problems During Infancy 619

FYI: Fruit Juices 621

Learning Portfolio 623

Key Terms 623 Study Points 623 Study Questions 624 Try This 624 References 625

Chapter 12 Life Cycle: From Childhood to Adulthood 628

Childhood 629

Energy and Nutrient Needs During Childhood 630 Influences on Childhood Food Habits and Intake 632

FYI: Food Hypersensitivities and Allergies 633

Nutritional Concerns of Childhood 634

Adolescence 637

FYI: Farmers' Markets 637

Physical Growth and Development 638 Emotional Maturity: Developmental Tasks 638 Nutrient Needs of Adolescents 638 Nutrition-Related Concerns for Adolescents 641

FYI: School Vending Machines and the Teen Diet 641

Staying Young While Growing Older 643

Weight and Body Composition 645 Physical Activity 645 Immunity 646 Taste and Smell 647 Gastrointestinal Changes 647 Nutrient Needs of the Mature Adult 648 Vitamins and Minerals 651 To Supplement or Not to Supplement 653 Nutrition-Related Concerns of Mature Adults 653 Meal Management for Mature Adults 659

Learning Portfolio 662

Key Terms 662 Study Points 662 Study Questions 662 Try This 663 Getting Personal 663 References 663

Spotlight on World Nutrition: The Faces of Global Malnutrition 666

Malnutrition in the United States 668

The Face of American Malnutrition 668 Prevalence and Distribution 669 Attacking Hunger in the United States 672 FYI: Hungry and Homeless 673

Malnutrition in the Developing World 675

The World Food Equation 676 The Fight Against Global Hunger 676 Social and Economic Factors 678 Infection and Disease 679 Political Disruptions 680 FYI: AIDS and Malnutrition 680

Agriculture and the Environment: A Tricky Balance 681

FYI: Tough Choices 682

Malnutrition: Its Nature, Its Victims, and Its Eradication 683

Learning Portfolio 688

Key Terms 688 Study Points 688 Study Questions 689 Try This 689 Getting Personal 689 References 690

Chapter 13

Food Safety and Technology: Microbial Threats and Genetic Engineering 692

Food Safety 694 Harmful Substances in Foods 694 FYI: Seafood Safety 699

Food Additives 706

Regulation by the FDA 706 Delaney Clause 708

Keeping Food Safe 708

Government Agencies 709 Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point 710

FYI: At War with Bioterrorism 711

FYI: Safe Food Practices 713

Who Is at Increased Risk for Foodborne Illness? 714 A Final Word on Food Safety 714

Food Technology 714

Food Preservation 714 Genetically Engineered Foods 716

Learning Portfolio 722

Key Terms 722 Study Points 722 Study Questions 723 Try This 723 Organic Foods 723 Getting Personal 723 References 724 Appendix A Dietary Reference Intakes A-2 Appendix B USDA Food Intake Patterns B-2 Appendix C Nutrition Assessment Methods C-2 Appendix D Vitamin and Mineral Summary

- Tables D-1
- Appendix E The Gastrointestinal Tract E-1
- Appendix F ATP Produced from Macronutrients F-2
- Appendix G Major Metabolic Pathways G-2
- Appendix H Food Safety Tables H-1
- Appendix I Information Resources I-2
- Appendix J Calculations and Conversions J-1

Glossary G-1

Index IX-2

Preface

elcome to the sixth edition of *Discovering Nutrition.*

With changes in nutrition-related information having never been more exciting or important than they are today, learning about nutrition should be stimulating and engaging. With that in mind, *Discovering Nutrition* takes students on a fascinating journey beginning with curiosity and ending with solid knowledge and a healthy dose of skepticism. Knowledge is power, and our mission is to offer students the tools to logically interpret nutrition information provided by the news media, popular entertainment, food labels, and government agencies. Our goal is to create sophisticated consumers of nutritional science as well as nutrition information.

Discovering Nutrition is unique in its behavioral approach, challenging students not just to memorize material, but to act on it. Familiar experiences and choices beckon students into each chapter. Analogies illuminate difficult concepts. We address important topics that students are curious about, ranging from functional foods and supplements to vegetarianism, athlete diets, and linkages between diet and chronic disease. In special spotlights, we focus attention on topics like alcohol, eating disorders, obesity, and complementary nutrition. For those instructors wishing to cover metabolism, we also include a "Spotlight on Metabolism and Energy Balance" that provides a friendly tour of the metabolic pathways. For this edition, we have significantly revised two areas that are of especially high interest, Chapter 9 "Nutrition for Physical Performance" and the "Spotlight on Eating Disorders," to reflect the current state of knowledge.

Accessible Science

Discovering Nutrition makes use of the latest in learning theory and balances the behavioral aspects of nutrition with an accessible approach to scientific concepts. This text is intended to be a comprehensive resource that communicates nutrition both graphically and personally. We present technical concepts in an engaging and friendly way with an appealing, stepwise, and parallel development of text and annotated illustrations. Illustrations in all chapters use consistent representations. Each type of nutrient, for example, has a distinct color and shape. Icons of an amino acid, a protein, a triglyceride, and a glucose molecule represent "characters" in the nutrition story and are instantly recognizable as they appear throughout the text.

This text leads the way in depicting important biological and physiological phenomena, such as emulsification, glucose regulation, digestion and absorption, and fetal development. Extensive graphic presentations make nutrition and physiological principles come alive.

2015–2020 Dietary Guidelines for Americans

The eighth edition of the *Dietary Guidelines for Americans* emphasizes following a healthy and varied eating pattern that limits calories from added sugars and saturated fats, reduces sodium intake, and incorporates more vegetables and whole grains. On the whole, this edition reflects advances in the scientific understanding of the importance of improving diets and increasing physical activity, two of the most important factors in reducing obesity and preventing chronic diseases in Americans. Focused on science-based recommendations on food and nutrition, the *Dietary Guidelines* empowers the American public to make shifts in what they eat and drink in favor of good health. As you read this text, look for key recommendations of the *Dietary Guidelines* highlighted in the margins.

Food Labeling

The Food and Drug Administration announced a new and redesigned Nutrition Facts label that will be required on most packaged food by January 2020. In an effort to encourage consumers to make more informed decisions, changes on the new label include such things as highlighting calories per serving and serving sizes more prominently, featuring a separate line showing how much sugar has been added to the food, and including updated Dietary Value information. The new label is discussed in Chapter 2 and has been incorporated into all Label to Table features found throughout the text.

New to This Edition

For this edition, the latest scientific evidence, recommendations, and national standards have been incorporated throughout the text.

Key Highlights

- Updated content reflects the 2015–2020 Dietary Guidelines for Americans, as well as the redesigned Nutrition Facts label.
- The new "Why Is This Important?" feature, tied to the majority of major headings in the text, breaks down the practical importance and value of the key concepts students are learning.
- The new "Getting Personal" feature, found in most of the end-of-chapter Learning Portfolios, encourages students to apply their nutritional knowledge to understanding their own diets.
- Revised statistics and data incorporated throughout the text reflect the current state of nutrition in the United States and the world.
- Revised food source charts in Chapters 7 and 8 more clearly convey common sources for vitamins and minerals.
- Updated Position Statements from the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics, the American Heart Association, and other organizations appear throughout the text.
- Updated references utilize the latest science in the field.
- New and updated FYI and Quick Bite features provide in-depth discussions of controversial issues and topics for classroom discussion.
- The redesigned Nutrition Facts label has been incorporated into the Label to Table features found throughout the text.

Chapter 1—Food Choices: Nutrients and Nourishment

- Updated discussion of the effects TV advertisements have on childhood nutrition
- Updated coverage of the impact of eating away from home
- Updated section comparing the "healthfulness" of the American diet versus the recommendations of the 2015–2020 Dietary Guidelines for Americans
- New comparison of phytochemicals and zoochemicals
- New comparison of the terms *kilocalorie* and *calorie*

- New features presenting excerpts from the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics' practice papers on social media and communicating accurate food and nutrition information
- New Quick Bite feature "Correlation or Causation?"

Chapter 2—Nutrition Guidelines: Tools for a Healthful Diet

- Inclusion of the key recommendations and overarching guidelines of the 2015–2020 Dietary Guidelines for Americans
- Revised description and discussion of the Nutrition Facts label, reflecting changes announced in 2016
- New Quick Bites features "Early 'Laws' of Health," "SuperTracker: My Foods, My Fitness, My Health" and "Underconsumption of Nutrients"
- Revised FYI feature "Portion Distortion"

Chapter 3—The Human Body: From Food to Fuel

- New section on gut microbiota
- Heavily revised FYI feature "Microbiota Out of Whack? Pre- and Probiotics May Help"
- Expanded description of passive diffusion

Chapter 4—Carbohydrates: Simple Sugars and Complex Chains

- New coverage of agave sweeteners
- New figure summarizing types of carbohydrates
- New table recapping common nonnutritive sweeteners
- New table summarizing the health benefits of fiber, as well as its effects in the gastrointestinal tract
- Heavily revised FYI feature "Is the Glycemic Index a Useful Tool for Constructing a Healthy Diet with Carbohydrates?"
- Expanded discussion of glycemic load
- New Quick Bite feature "Low-Carb Diets"

Spotlight on Alcohol

- Updated description and statistics about college drinking behaviors
- Expanded Quick Bite feature "Energy Drinks + Alcohol = A Recipe for Disaster"

Chapter 5—Lipids: Not Just Fat

- Updated sections providing recommendations for omega fatty acid intake and summarizing the health effects of omega-3 fatty acids
- New table listing good food sources of omega-3 fatty acids
- Updated consideration of seafood consumption guidelines, along with a new figure illustrating healthy and safe fish options for pregnant and breastfeeding women
- Revised FYI feature "Fats on the Health Food Store Shelf" that includes a new section on coconut and grapeseed oil
- New description of fat's structural role in the brain
- New discussion of the lack of a UL for fat, trans fat, or cholesterol

Chapter 6—Proteins and Amino Acids: Function Follows Form

- New FYI feature "Celiac Disease and Gluten Sensitivity"
- New discussion about the lack of evidence for gluten-free diets impacting weight loss
- Updated consideration of protein recommendations for athletes
- Updated discussion of the health benefits and risks of vegetarian diets, including a new table providing healthy tips for vegetarians
- New Position Statement from the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics on vegetarian diets

Chapter 7—Vitamins: Vital Keys to Health

- Expanded presentation of the impact of vitamin A deficiency on skin and other epithelial cells
- Expanded discussion of vitamin B₁₂ deficiency, including atrophic gastritis
- New Quick Bite features "Help the Vitamins Go Down" and "A Yellowish-Orange Hue"

Spotlight on Dietary Supplements and Functional Foods

- Significantly revised FYI feature "Defining Complementary and Integrative Health: How Does Nutrition Fit In?"
- Expanded discussion of fad diets and critical appraisal of diets, foods, and supplements

Chapter 8—Water and Minerals: The Ocean Within

- Revised FYI feature "Tap, Filtered, or Bottled: Which Water Is Best?" that considers current statistics surrounding bottled water use and things to keep in mind when selecting vitamin waters, supplements, or bottled waters
- New table summarizing macronutrients and micronutrients
- New discussion about the controversy surrounding the American Heart Association's suggestion and the *Dietary Guidelines*' recommendation to reduce sodium
- New Quick Bite feature "Processed Foods and Salt"

Spotlight on Metabolism and Energy Balance

- Updated section on portion size based on recent studies
- Revised FYI feature "What's Neat About NEAT?" that expands on sedentary behavior in the workplace
- New Quick Bite feature "Is Tom Brady Too Fat?"

Chapter 9—Nutrition for Physical Performance

- Incorporates new suggestions for eating and drinking before, during, and after exercise
- Expanded discussion of dehydration, including ways to check your hydration status
- New consideration of energy availability
- New section describing how vitamin D may support athletic performance
- New section on the vegetarian athlete
- New table presenting the Physical Activity Guidelines for Americans
- New table summarizing the American College of Sports Medicine's position on the amount and type of fluid to consume before, during, and after activity
- New table presenting a summary of generalized carbohydrate intake by athletes
- Added clarification regarding the distinction between lactic acid and lactate
- New FYI feature "When Are Sports Drinks Recommended?"

- New Position Statement from the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics on nutrition and athletic performance
- New Quick Bite feature "Alligator Water?"

Spotlight on Eating Disorders

- Reflects the diagnostic criteria presented in the *Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition (DSM-V)*
- Incorporates current theories of causes of eating disorders
- Added background on binge-eating disorder
- New section on the prevalence of eating disorders
- New section elaborating on the consequences of eating disorders
- New FYI features "Exploring the Connection Between Negative Affect and Eating Disorders" and "Night-Eating Syndrome: Not an Eating Disorder, But Sometimes a Concern"
- New Quick Bite features "Body Dysmorphic Disorder," "A Matter of Degree," "Estimates for Prevalence of Binge-Eating Disorder May Soon Rise," and "Changing the Perception of Exercise to Help Combat an Eating Disorder"

Chapter 10—Diet and Health

- New section on the link between diet and cardiometabolic disease, including a table outlining the top five dietary factors associated with cardiometabolic deaths
- Enhanced description of personalized nutrition
- Updated section on the possible link between diet and cancer, including a new table summarizing dietary components and cancer risk

Spotlight on Obesity and Weight Management

- Updated statistics about obesity and overweight rates in the United States
- Expanded discussion of the role of social networks in obesity
- New section on smartphone-based interventions
- New section on weight-loss devices
- Revised FYI feature "Childhood and Teenage Obesity" that includes a discussion of taxes on sugary beverages

- New Position Statement from the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics on interventions for the treatment of overweight and obesity in adults
- New Quick Bite feature "Dangerous Caloric Restriction"

Chapter 11—Life Cycle: Maternal and Infant Nutrition

- New FYI feature "New Guidelines for Introducing Peanut Products"
- New Quick Bite feature "Would It Be Healthier to Menstruate Less Often?"

Chapter 12—Life Cycle: From Childhood Through Adulthood

- New FYI features "Farmers' Markets" and "School Vending Machines and the Teen Diet"
- Updated American Heart Association recommendations for fiber consumption
- Updated figures showing MyPlate meal and snack patterns for preschoolers and the modified MyPlate for older adults

Spotlight on World Nutrition: The Faces of Global Malnutrition

- Updated statistics regarding world hunger, homelessness in the United States, and malnutrition in the United States
- Updated U.S. poverty guidelines
- Expanded description of food deserts
- New Quick Bite features "Is There a Food Desert Near You?" and "To Breastfeed or Not?"

Chapter 13—Food Safety and Technology: Microbial Threats and Genetic Engineering

- Expanded coverage of natural toxins and food allergies
- Expanded coverage of the benefits and risks of genetic engineering
- New Quick Bite features "Flesh-Eating Bacteria?" and "Is It Stomach Flu or Food Poisoning?"

The Pedagogy

Discovering Nutrition focuses on teaching behavioral change, personal decision making, and up-to-date scientific concepts in a number of novel ways. This interactive approach addresses different learning styles, making it the ideal text to ensure mastery of key concepts. Beginning with Chapter 1, the material engages students in considering their own behavior in light of the knowledge they are gaining. The pedagogical aids that appear in most chapters include the following:



659

The presence of nutritional deficiencies in over eight and obese older adults can be a consequence of the long-term insumption of a high-calorie, poor-nutrient diet and a physically

Meal Management for Mature Adults

Many older adults are at nutritional risk because of economic social isolation, physical restrictions, inability to shop for or ps pare food, and medical conditions. Fortunately, there are a numb ways that older adults can remain independent and he an adequate diet.

ndent and assisted-living programs allow people to live relat e yet independent lives. Senior citizen apartment buildings illages offer a variety of services, including balanced meal ich as Meals on Wheels and the Older Americans A meals to home-bound per ettings. Most programs pr Older Americans Act Ne h federal funds; volunteer r time. only with fuderal funds; conductors time, instand donations, and piant contributions make up the remainder. The Suppresental tion Assistance Program (SNAP), formerly the Food Stamp may another the standard state of the state of the earns to purchase food. Unformately, because SNAP carries a purchase food. Unformately, because SNAP carries a restingue, source order adults are inductar to purchase. In addi-manty people whos need some help buying food do not meet the the people whos need some help buying food do not meet the stars people whos need some help buying food do not meet the

by equivalencements, weakhasticen of the Older Americans Act Natritisen Pospgram weakhasticen and Bad a higher matricen instake levels than ricidparts and Bad a higher matthew of regular social contactiv-in-inpartant factors in earting well." Participation in food assis-tiongrams na robust the laddence of depression and overweight on with food insecurity."

Wise Eating for One or Two

nue Letting for One or Two "reparing ments that are healthful and tarty is a challenge for those ming alone or in small households. As discussed earlier in this chapter are notifican needs—with the exception of calories—do not decrease to we age, but our ability to meet them does. Relinance on conversione node, fart foods, and eating out can adversely affect the matrixinal tanus of older adults. New who line alone are especially likely to us at or skip meals rather than prepare food for themselves. For both sen and women, physical disability or illness can diminish the decire a prepare and eat meals.

learning.

Position Statement: Academy of Nutriti and Dietetics

d Nutrition for Dider Adu ing Health and Wellness

Key Concepts summarize previous text and highlight important information.

Position Statements from

distinguished organizations such as the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics, the American College of Sports Medicine, and the American Heart Association relate to the chapter topics and bolster the assertions made by the authors by showcasing concurrent opinions held by some of the leading organizations in nutrition and health.

Genetics and Disease

Why is This important? Subtants are and o will help you appre

tic makeup and di v all disea ses have some an st. 34 ie of the im

GENETICS AND DISEASE

497

Key Terms are in boldface type the first time they are mentioned. Their definitions also appear in the margins near the relevant textual discussion, making it easy for students to review material.

New to this edition, Why Is This

Important? provides students

practical importance and value of the information they're

with a brief overview of the

Quick Bites sprinkled throughout the text offer fun facts about nutrition-related topics such as unique foods, social customs, origins of phrases, folk remedies, medical history, and so on.



xxi

Is the Glycemic Index a Useful Tool for Constructing a Healthy Diet with Carbohydrates?

with diabeter to help first runs their blood plut the glucenic index to guide lood division.

The given is index compares the change in blood purched water softw a sample load to the change segregates them software is equal at enouth available calcologidate from a standard fload such as white beaut, or like paraging from 1–10, with 100 being the standard fload? "Foods with a high-giveness index is expressed as a percentage and tool."

This explains why their boots could be understate for a primor with debress. Inconstruct, low-glocomic roles food trigger indexe and more moders thanges in blood glucose levels, thereby making blood glucose easier to manage. However, the effects of high or low-glucomic index foods on propole without diabetin are questionable, especially when eating a mead-dex.

of a Food or Meal?

The glycenesis index of a book is not always example, served, it is output appear to a use of book and a non-away have a book group discover, only or nonzero statubally have a how glycenesis where the house is not for those to group the server of the server of the server of the server of the house to book server of the server of the server of the server of the house to the server of the server of the server of the server of the server book in the server of the server of the server of the server book and the server of the server of the server of the server books and the server of the server of the server of the server books and the server of the server of the server of the server books are prevent the HBLE A. and have of prevents in choice substitutions are prevent the HBLE A.

at the department of the second secon

Why Do Some Researchers Believe the O

	-		1000
freed	lades .	head	index .
Rebery Products		Auto	
Reilla cale	42±4	Apples	19 = 5
Doughnut	75 ± 7	Waterbeller	72 0.15
Bread Breaklest Jun		Dates	42.84
Bapri	49	Legenes .	
Wheat and rye bread	-40	Bakelbears	40±3
Pitalbread	48±5	Bick-syndpoint	38
Al-bar*	46±6	Pinta bears	30
FreetLoop*	49.1.9	Pasta	
Purilige	35 = 2	Laiagna	50
Correct Grades		Spagnett	#E±3
Onnons	45±7	Teptaties	
Sweet catti	\$2±5	Panjikis	- 64
Laponica short-grain Srown-rice	42±5	Carets	39.5.4
Instant while rice	47±2	Bakedpotato	86±6
Deity Fredb		Candy	
la cisan	37	Nationalise	42.04
Full-fait milk	41+2	BBRS*, peanet	10 + 3

117

Data from Atkenson PS, Foster-Powell K, Brand-Millet, Internation Tubles of Glycomic Index Values 2008. 2008 Diab Care, 510 (2)

Why Do Some Researchers Believe the Glycemic

Whether a person is diabetic systep to control blood phonone here adversified works for each system ensemblers question the andment of conduction datase personal from epidemiological acades, per here to device the system of the system ensembler of question. The and what here academic advance personally from epidemiological acades, per half blood datase advance as accounts to for alreid promotion Additionally results on the effectiveness of two physics, index that data and shall be actually as the test ensemble.

FYI (For Your Information) offers more

in-depth discussions of controversial and timely topics, such as claims about the effects of sugar, the protein needs of athletes, and the usefulness of the glycemic index.

Label to Table helps students apply their new decision-making skills at the supermarket. It walks students through the various types of information that appear on food labels, including government-mandated terminology, misleading advertising phrases, and amounts of ingredients. This feature has been updated for this edition to reflect the new labeling guidelines released by the FDA in May 2016.



Software a Round naturally in many Book, but processed Book as for most of the soft and sodium. Americans consumers Procreated with high amounts of sub include regular canned segnitables and fingure, dranees, lunch means, instant and ready-to-est consult, and chaps and other smarks. You can use book labels to chapse pro losser in sodium.

Which of these two items is lower in sockum? To sell, check the Perce Delivitation

The known peak are lower to softum, without 5 percent af the CN per of to go wrining. The canned peak have three three mous bollows the leader point. Special of the CP was ensing Sodulus in Standmery fixed that might supple point, such as balance pools, up soards of emocodous dipatement BHGS Sodulus to even found in some anicid—the range in welds. Before three joint and balance that is beintimer, there will some force registering Way, bein high tabletophares will statisticate instan medical conduction or who take during medicate medication medicates medicates

	Nutrition Fa	acts		
	Serving size 1/2 cu			
	Amount perserving Calories	60		
		hely Heles		
	Total Fat Dg	- 0%		
	Saturated Fat 0g			
	Trans Eat Og			
	Cholestand Omg			
	Sodium 380mg	36%		
	Total Carbohydrate 13g	41		
	Dietary Fiber 3p	14%		
	Total Sugars 4g			
	Includes 4g Added Suga	n #1		
	Protein 4g			
	visuamin D Umicg	04		
	Calcium 20mg	29		
	Inpe 1.4mg	81		
	Potassium 124mg	- 41		

Nutrition F	acts
Serving size	1/2 cup
Amount per serving Calories	60
No.	Daily Value"
Saturated Eat fire	
Dans Lat Im	
Chalesteral Ong	-
Sodium 125mg	5%
Total Carbohydrate 11g	4%
Dietary Fiber lig	22%
Total Sugars 5g	
Includes Sp Added Sec	10%

in 1.1mg 60 staceburn 82mg 24 in 10349 Miles (Millith use four much unabled in arring of host contribution to address the contribution of the contribution The **Learning Portfolio** at the end of each chapter condenses all aspects of nutrition information that students need to solidify their understanding of the material. The various formats will appeal to students according to their individual learning and studying styles.

Key Terms list all new vocabulary alphabetically with the page number of the first appearance. This arrangement allows students to review any term they do not recall and turn immediately to the definition and discussion of it in the chapter. This approach also promotes the acquisition of knowledge, not simply memorization.

Study Points summarize the content of each chapter with a synopsis of each major topic. The points are in the order in which they appear in the chapter, so related concepts flow together.

Study Questions encourage students to probe deeper into the chapter content, making connections and gaining new insights. Although these questions can be used for pop quizzes, they will also help students to review, especially students who study by writing out material. 662 CHAPTER 12 LIFE CYCLE: FROM CHILDHOOD TO ADULTHOOD

Learning Portfolio

Key Terms

	page
acte	641
adolescence	629
Alzheimer's disease (AD)	658
anorexia of aging	656
childhood	629
epiphyses	638
hyperactivity	634
hypervitaminosis	653
macular degeneration	657
Meals on Wheels	659
menarche	638
Older Americans Act Nutrition Program	659
puberty	637
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)	659
taste threshold	647
urinary tract infection (UTII)	646

Study Points

- For children and adolescents, growth is the key determinant of nutrient needs. If diets are planned carefully, children do not need vitamin/mineral supplementation.
- Federally funded nutrition and feeding programs reduce malnutrition and hunger among U.S. children.
 Adoption of adult food plans to reduce risk of chron-
- Autoption of adult food pairs to reduce risk of enrolic disease should begin gradually after the age of 2.
- The prevalence of obesity and eating disorders is rising among U.S. children and teens: treatment programs should address food choices and activity levels rather than impose strict calorie limits. Vegetarian diets for children need to be planned carefally to avoid nutrient deliciencies.
- The total energy and nutrient needs of adolescents are high to support growth and maturation. Girls need more iron than boys do to compensate for losses after the onset of menstration. Active teens need more calories and nutrients than sedentary teens; fluid intake is also a priority.
- Nutrition and physical activity are two important controllable components of a healthy life and healthful aging. Moreover, numerous physiological and psychological aspects of the aging process affect food intake and nutritional status.
- Energy needs decline with age, reflecting loss of lean body mass and reduced physical activity.

The protein RDA and the recommended balance of carbohydrate and fat calories in the diet are similar for young and older adults. Fluid intake needs special attention because of the reduced thirst response that occurs with age.

- Because of reduced intake, synthesis, and activation, vitamin D status declines with age; recommended intake levels are therefore raised. Vitami B₂₃ status might be compromised by inadequate absorption. Antioxidants can help in the protection against degenerative diseases.
- Calcium and zinc intakes are likely to be marginal in the diets of older adults. Iron also remains important.
- Dietary supplements, both vitamin/mineral and herbal/botanical, should be used with caution, preferably with professional advice.
- Because many older adults take multiple medications, they are at risk for drug-nutrient, food-drug, and drug-drug interactions. Anorexia of aging is also a major public health problem.
- Arthritis is a prevalent chronic health problem in this age group. Weight management is a key element of arthritis treatment.
- Chronic constipation is a common complaint among older adults. Fluids, fiber, and regular exercise can reduce the likelihood of constipation.
- Poor oral and visual health both can compromise the ability of older adults to consume a nutritionally adequate diet.
- Osteoporosis is a major health problem that can be addressed through adequate calcium and vitamin D, regular weight-bearing exercise, and medication if needed.
- Adults can maintain independence while aging but may require special assistance to obtain and prepare food. Community resources can help respond to the needs of older adults and those of their caretakers and family.

Study Questions

- Which vitamins and minerals are most likely to be deficient in a child's diet?
- Identify several chronic nutrition problems that can affect children. How can these problems be avoided?

LEARNING PORTFOLIO 663

- 3. What are typical nutritional concerns for adolescents?
- What are some consequences of decreased immu-nity among older adults?
- 5. Compared with a younger adult, does a perolder than 65 years need more, less, or about the same amount of protein?
- 6. Why are older adults at risk of vitamin D deficiency?
- Discuss minerals that may need special attention in assessment of an older adult's nutrition status.
- 8. What problems might older adults encounter with dietary supplements?
- 9. What is the role of physical activity in osteoporosis prevention? What nutritional factors are important?

Try This •

Eat Like a Kid

Children, especially toddlers, tend to be exploratory and take in the sensory nature of food—the textures, smells, and tastes. In fact, you were probably onee this way: The purpose of this exercise is to eat a meal like a kid and gain an appreciation of food's textures and taste. Make some mashed potatoes, macaroni and cheese, buttered peas, or spaghetti (favorite "kid food") and eat it with your fingers. Explore your food and play with it. Try mixing foods. How does this experience make you feel?

Aging Simulation

The purpose of this exercise is to simulate what it can be like to age and experience age-related declines in health. Have you ever thought of how difficult it is to be an older person with health problems and do utine tasks? Invite a few friends over and do the following:

- Put gloves on to simulate the difficulty of losing. sensitivity in your hands.
- Use cotton balls in your ears to decrease your hearing ability.
- Apply some petroleum jelly to a pair of glasses or sunglasses to give yourself poor vision.

Now try a simple activity. Make a salad, send a text switch disabilities with your friends so that everyone has experienced each of the limitations. What is it like to do se activities with your impairment?

Getting Personal

You have just graduated. Revisit your eating habits as a child, teenager, and college student, and assign the most appropriate descriptor to each item. Consider how your past nutritional behavior has helped determine your current health status

- 0 = seldom or never true
- 1 = sometimes tru
- 2 = frequently true
- As a child,
- 1. I was a picky eater, rejecting the food usually offered.
- 2. I was not permitted to decide how much to eat. 3. I rarely drank milk

4. I ate candy every day

- As an adolescent,
- 5.1 let peer pressure influence my nutrition choices.
- 6. I ate in front of the TV.
- 7. I worried about my weight
- As a college student,
- 8. I didn't think about healthy food choices 9. I resisted changing my eating habits.
- 10. I was influenced by food fads.

Add up your score. Scores over 12 should signal that ar healthy nutrition behavior can be improved. Highlight the items you feel can be affected by behavior change

References

- Deriver of Medeine, Ford and Narchion Board. Disney Reference Jonates for Energy, Cartedoption, Pher. Feit, Feitg Jeith, Chalesterel, Pantein, and Anisto Acids. Washington, DC: Narosani Academics Proc. 2005. Kleinema RE, Greer FE, Och. Perfaret: Startistiss Headboal: Put et. ER: Gonev Ulling, LL: American Academics Prot 1014. Ogara B, Tausein D, Position of the Academy of Narricon and Disertion antitisming antibactors for headbort cyclic Part 1014. Ogara B, Tausein P, Exclude JE, et al. Provalence and associations of 20 headborty-biantis D dedicency in U.S. ehddens NMANIS 2001–2004. Apaterias. 2009;124(6):a0166 err. 2010. Ogara B, Haren D, Ope, 6t. Elements HE, Goner FE, Ope, 6t.

- Kleinman RI, Groor FR, On. cit.

Asternanis AL, Cartor PA, Ogo D, Ogara B, Harso D, Opi GL. Neelon SE, Billey ME, Positism of the American Disentir Aenociation benchmarkofs en ramition in difficure. J Am Det Anno. 2011;111:10671-813 Penrson N, Biddle SI. Sederatory behavior and diseary instale in child dreas, adolescentes, and adults: a syntematic perior. Am J Prov Mol. 2011;14:1(2):178-180.

Getting Personal encourages students to consider their newly gained knowledge in the context of their own diets.

Try This activities provide suggestions for hands-on activities that encourage students to put theory into practice. It will especially help students whose major learning style is experimental.

The Integrated Learning and Teaching Package

Jones & Bartlett Learning provides a full suite of instructor resources for *Discovering Nutrition*, Sixth Edition, which qualified instructors can receive by contacting their Account Manager. Available resources include:

- Test Bank, including more than 850 questions
- Slides in PowerPoint format, featuring more than 500 slides
- Instructor's Manual, containing lecture outlines, discussion questions, and answers to the in-text Study Questions
- Image Bank, supplying key figures from the text •
- Sample Syllabus, showing how a course can be structured around this text
- Transition Guide, providing guidance in switching from the previous edition

In addition, *Discovering Nutrition* is available in a variety of eBook formats, including as a Navigate 2 Advantage eBook containing 36 scientifically based animations that give students an accurate, accessible explanation of the major scientific concepts and physiological principles presented in this text.

About the Authors

he *Discovering Nutrition* author team represents a culmination of years of teaching and research in nutrition science and psychology. The combined experience of the authors yields a balanced presentation of both the science of nutrition and the components of behavioral change.

Dr. Paul Insel is Adjunct Professor of Psychiatry and the Behavioral Sciences at Stanford University (Stanford, California). In addition to being the principal investigator on several nutrition projects for the National Institutes of Health (NIH), he is the senior author of the seminal text in health education and has co-authored several best-selling nutrition books.

Don Ross is Director of the California Institute of Human Nutrition (Redwood City, California). For more than 30 years he has co-authored multiple textbooks and created educational materials about health and nutrition for consumers, professionals, and college students. He has special expertise in communicating complicated physiological processes with easily understood graphical presentations. The National Institutes of Health selected his *Travels with Cholesterol* for distribution to consumers. His multidisciplinary focus brings together the fields of psychology, nutrition, biochemistry, biology, and medicine.

Kimberley McMahon, MDA, RD, received her registration with the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics upon completion of a nutrition program at Montana State University and a dietetic internship at Miami Valley Hospital in Dayton, Ohio. Her graduate studies at Utah State University investigated a person's success with behavior and weight management as it relates to personality psychology and the extent to which individuals believe they can control events affecting their lives. Kimberley has taught nutrition courses for more than 18 years in both traditional and online settings, including basic nutrition, advanced nutrition, medical terminology, nutrition for exercise and sport, dietetics administration, and clinical nutrition. She has been an instructor at Utah State University and Northern Kentucky University, and currently teaches in the Master of Science Degree in Nutrition and Human Performance program at Logan University (Chesterfield, Missouri). In addition to Discovering Nutrition, she is a co-author of Nutrition, Nutrition Across Life Stages, and Eat Right! Healthy Eating in College and Beyond. Her interests and experience are in the areas of wellness, weight management, sports nutrition, and eating disorders. Kimberley is currently licensed as a Dietitian in the state of Indiana.

Dr. Melissa Bernstein is a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist, Licensed Dietitian, and Fellow of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics. She received her doctoral degree from the Gerald J. and Dorothy R. Friedman School of Nutrition Science and Policy at Tufts University (Boston, Massachusetts). As an Assistant Professor in the Department of Nutrition at Chicago Medical School, Dr. Bernstein is innovative in creating engaging and challenging nutrition courses. Her interests include introductory nutrition, health and wellness, geriatric nutrition, physical activity, and nutritional biochemistry. In addition to co-authoring leading nutrition textbooks-including Nutrition, Discovering Nutrition, Nutrition Across Life Stages, Nutrition for the Older Adult, and Nutrition Assessment: Clinical and Research Applications-Dr. Bernstein has reviewed and authored textbook chapters, position statements, and peerreviewed journal publications on the topics of nutrition and nutrition for older adults. She is the co-author of the Position of the Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics: Food and Nutrition for Older Adults: Promoting Health and Wellness. She serves on review and advisory committees for the Academy's Evidence Analysis Library and as a reviewer for upcoming position statements.

Contributors

he authors would like to acknowledge the valuable contributions of the following:

Feon Cheng, PhD, MPH, RDN, CHTS-CP

Academy of Nutrition and Dietetics Chapter 7, "Vitamins"

Brian Cook, PhD

California State University, Monterey Bay "Spotlight on Eating Disorders"

Carolyn Dunn, PhD, RD

North Carolina State University "Spotlight on Alcohol" Chapter 8, "Water and Minerals"

Fabio Giallongo, PhD

Chapter 7, "Vitamins"

Diane L. McKay, PhD, FACN

Tufts University Chapter 4, "Carbohydrates"

Emily Mohn, PhD

Tufts University Chapter 4, "Carbohydrates"

Tara LaRowe, PhD, RDN, CD

University of Wisconsin–Madison "Spotlight on World Nutrition"

Contributors from past editions include the following:

Nancy K. Amy, PhD, University of California, Berkeley Janine T. Baer, PhD, RD, University of Dayton Katherine Beals, PhD, RD, FACSM, University of Utah Hope McClusky Bilyk, MS, RD, LDN, Rosalind Franklin University of Medicine and Science

Toni Bloom, MS, RD, CDE, San Jose State University

Pat Brown, MS, RD, Cuesta College

Boyce W. Burge, PhD, California Institute of Human Nutrition

Robert DiSilvestro, PhD, The Ohio State University Eileen G. Ford, MS, RD, Drexel University

Ellen B. Fung, PhD, RD, University of Pennsylvania

Michael I. Goran, PhD, University of Southern California

Nancy J. Gustafson, MS, RD, FADA, Sawyer County (WI) Aging Unit

Rita H. Herskovitz, MS, University of Pennsylvania

Nancy I. Kemp, MD, University of California, San Francisco

Sarah Harding Laidlaw, MS, RD, MPA, Dietitians in Integrative and Functional Medicine DPG #18

Sally A. Lederman, PhD, Columbia University

Rick D. Mattes, MPH, PhD, RD, Purdue University

Alexandria Miller, PhD, RD/LD, Northeastern State University

Carla Miller, PhD, The Ohio State University

Nancy Munoz, DCN, MHA, RD

Maye Musk, MS, RD, Past President of the Consulting Dietitians of Canada

Joyce D. Nash, PhD

Marcia Nelms, PhD, RD, Missouri State University

C.J. Nieves, MS, University of Florida

Elizabeth Quintana, MS, RD, LD, CDE, West Virginia University School of Medicine

Barbara Reynolds, MS, RD, College of the Sequoias

Mackinnon Ross, MPH, California Institute of Human Nutrition

Sylvia Santosa, PhD, Concordia University

Helen Spremulli, RN, CP, Dr. Dario Del Rizzo Professional Medicine Corporation Rachel Stern, MS, RD, CNS, North Jersey Community Research Initiative

Lisa Stollman, MA, RD, CDE, CDN, State University of New York at Stony Brook

Barbara Sutherland, PhD, University of California, Davis

R. Elaine Turner, PhD, University of Florida

Debra M. Vinci, PhD, RD, CD, Appalachian State University

Stella L. Volpe, PhD, RD, FACSM, University of Massachusetts

Paula Kurtzweil Walter, MS, RD, Federal Trade Commission

Reviewers

he authors would like to thank the following for their assistance in providing feedback that informed the revisions for this edition:

Reviewers of the Sixth Edition

Patricia Abraham, MPH, RD, CNS, LD, Arkansas State University

Diane Anderson, DNP, MSN, RN, CNE, Chamberlain University

Dorothy Chen-Maynard, PhD, RDN, FAND, California State University, San Bernardino

Brian Cook, PhD, California State University, Monterey Bay

Linda DeTurk, MS, Mid-Plains Community College

Elizabeth T. Dixon, DrPH, BSN, RN, MHA, Armstrong Atlantic University

Johanna Donnenfield, MS, RD, Scottsdale Community College

Michelle Eggers, RD, CDE, MEd, CCC-SLP, Appalachian State University

Marianne Heffrin, MS, RD, LD, Endicott College

Cynthia Heiss, PhD, RD, LD, University of the Incarnate Word

Sharon Himmelstein, PhD, MNS, RDN, Central New Mexico Community College

Arlene J. Hoogewerf, PhD, Calvin College

Kathleen M. Laquale, PhD, ATC, LAT, LDN, Bridgewater State University

Maryln Lehmkuhl, RDN, MS, Alexandria Technical and Community College

Lindsay Malone, MS, RD, CSO, LD, Case Western Reserve University

Mary Martinez, MS, RDN, LD, Central New Mexico Community College

Sara S. Plaspohl, DrPH, CHES, Armstrong State University

Robin Polokoff, PhD, Las Positas College

Vidya Sharma, MA, RD, LD, CDE, University of the Incarnate Word

Ellen Thompson, RDN, LD, Cedarville University Belinda Zeidler, MST, Portland State University

Reviewers of Previous Editions

Donna L. Acox, MA, MS, RD, CD/N, Syracuse University

Helen C. Alexanderson-Lee, PhD, RD, California State University, Long Beach

Betty B. Alford, PhD, RD, LD, Texas Women's University

Nancy K. Amy, PhD, University of California at Berkeley

Susan I. Barr, PhD, RDN, University of British Columbia

Renee Barrile, PhD, RD, University of Massachusetts–Lowell

Richard C. Baybutt, PhD, Kansas State University

Kristen Beavers, PhD, MPH, RD, Wake Forest University

Beverly A. Benes, PhD, RD, University of Nebraska at Lincoln

Orville Bigelow, MS, RD, Mohave Community College

Teresa Blair, MS, RD, LD, CDE, Eastern Kentucky University

Cynthia Blanton, PhD, RD, Idaho State University

Virginia C. Bragg, MS, RD, CD, Utah State University

Dr. Michele Brandenburger, BS, DC, MS, Presentation College

Katie Brown, BS, MS, Central Missouri State University

Lisa Burgoon, MS, RD, CSSD, LDN, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

Melanie Tracy Burns, PhD, RD, Eastern Illinois University N. Joanne Caid, PhD, California State University, Fresno

Deborah Cheater, MS, RN, Carl Albert State College

Sai Chidambaram, Canisius College

Alana D. Cline, PhD, RD, University of Northern Colorado

Janet Colson, PhD, RD, Middle Tennessee State University

Marisela Contreras, PhD, Richland College

Holly A. Dieken, PhD, MS, BS, RD, University of Tennessee at Chattanooga

Judy A. Driskell, PhD, RD, University of Nebraska

Liz Emery, MS, RD, CNSD, Drexel University

Dorelle Engel, MS, Montgomery College

Joan Fischer, PhD, RD, LD, University of Georgia

Jeanne Freeman, PhD, CHES, Butte-Glenn Community College

Bernard L. Frye, PhD, University of Texas at Arlington

Amy Gannon, MS, RD, LD, Marshall University

Esperanza Garza, MS, RD, LD, South Texas College

Shelby Goldberg, RD, CDE, Pima Community College

Christine Goodner, MS, RD, Winthrop University

Michael I. Goran, PhD, University of Southern California

Margaret Gunther, PhD, Palomar Community College

Nancy J. Guthrie, MA, Pierce College

Lisa P. Hall, MHA, MS, RD LD, CDE, Fayette County Memorial Hospital

Julia Halterman, PhD, Eastern Mennonite University

Shelley R. Hancock, MS, RD, LD, University of Alabama

Thomas P. Harnden, PhD, Georgia Highlands College

Nancy Gordon Harris, MS, RD, LDN, East Carolina University

Mary K. Head, PhD, RD, LD, University of West Virginia

Deloy G. Hendricks, PhD, CNS, Utah State University

Sharon Himmelstein, PhD, MNS, RD, LD, Albuquerque Technical Vocational Institute

Cathy Hix-Cunningham, PhD, RD, LDN, Tennessee Technological University

Carolyn Holcroft-Burns, BSN, PhD, Foothill College

Claire B. Hollenbeck, PhD, San Jose State University

Kevin Huggins, PhD, Auburn University

Donna Huisenga, MS, RD, LDN, Illinois Central College

Craig T. Hunt, RDN, Eastern Washington University Michael Jenkins, Kent State University

Amy Kelly, MS, RD, LDN, Illinois Central College

Zaheer Ali Kirmani, PhD, RD, LD, Sam Houston State University

Mark E. Knauss, PhD, Georgia Highlands College

Laura Freeland Kull, MS, RD, Madonna University

Colleen Kvaska, MA, RD, CDE, Fullerton College

Sarah Harding Laidlaw, MS, RD, MPA, CDE

Janet Levins, PhD, RD, LD, Pensacola Junior College

David Lightsey, MS, Bakersfield College

Samantha R. Logan, DrPH, RD, University of Massachusetts

Lynne Marie LoPresto, MS, RD, Dominican University of California

Lourdes Lore, MS, Henry Ford Community College

Michael P. Maina, PhD, Valdosta State University

Patricia Z. Marincic, PhD, RD, LD, CLE, College of Saint Benedict/Saint John's University

Melissa J. Martilotta, MS, RD, Pennsylvania State University

Laura H. May, RD, Mesa Community College

Jennifer McLean, MSPH, Corning Community College

Brett R. Merklet, MSN, RN, LDS Business College

Mark S. Meskin, PhD, RD, California State Polytechnic University at Pomona Stella Miller, BA, MA, Mount San Antonio College

Kristin Moline, MSEd, Lourdes University

Marilyn Mook, BS, MS, Michigan State University

Mary W. Murimi, PhD, Louisiana Technical University

Lisa M. Murray, MS, Pierce College

Katherine O. Musgrave, MS, RD, CAS, University of Maine at Orono

Joyce D. Nash, PhD

J. Dirk Nelson, PhD, Missouri Southern State College

Karen Nguyen-Garcia, Community College of Denver

Nora Norback, MPH, RD, CDE, City College of San Francisco

Veronica J. Oates, PhD, RDN, LDN, Tennessee State University

Anne O'Donnell, MS, MPH, RD, Santa Rosa Junior College

Esther Okeiyi, PhD, RD, LDN, North Carolina Central University

Nancy Peterson, PhD, North Central College

Scott Peterson, MS, Hill College

Rebecca S. Pobocik, PhD, RD, Bowling Green State University

Roseanne L. Poole, MS, RD, LD/N, Tallahassee Community College

Elizabeth Quintana, MS, RD, LD, CDE, West Virginia University School of Medicine

Amy F. Reeder, MS, RD, University of Utah

Robert D. Reynolds, PhD, University of Illinois at Chicago

Lois A. Ritter, EdD, MS, California State University at East Bay

Becky Sander, MS, RD, LD, Miami University

Stephen W. Sansone, BS, EdM, Chemekata Community College

Lisa Sasson, MS, RD, New York University

Susan T. Saylor, RD, EdD, Shelton State University

Donal Scheidel, DDS, University of South Dakota

Stephanie Schroeder, PhD, Webster University

Shannon Seal, MS, RD, Front Range Community College

Brian Luke Seaward, PhD, University of Colorado at Boulder

Mohammad R. Shayesteh, PhD, RD, LD, Youngstown State University

Melissa Shock, PhD, RD, University of Central Arkansas

LuAnn Soliah, PhD, RD, Baylor University

Bernice Gales Spurlock, PhD, Hinds Community College

Christine Stapell, MS, RD, LDN, Tallahassee Community College

Barbara A. Stettler, MEd, Bluffton College

Beth Stewart, PhD, RD, University of Arizona

Rhoada Tanenbaum, EdD, Long Island University at CW Post

Kathy Timperman, MS, West Virginia University

Annette R. Tommerdahl, PhD, University of Louisiana at Monroe

Norman R. Trezek, MS, Pima Community College

Duane Trogdon, EdD, LeTourneau University

Anna Sumabat Turner, MEd, Bob Jones University

Karen M. Ulrich, BS, Paul Smith's College of Arts and Sciences

Amy A. Vaughn, MS, Radford University

Andrea M. Villarreal, MS, RD, Phoenix College

Debra M. Vinci, DrPh, RD, LDN, University of West Florida

Janelle Walter, PhD, Baylor University

Claire E. Watson, PhD, St. Bonaventure University

Beverly G. Webber, MS, RD, CD, University of Utah

Jennifer Weddig, MS, RD, Metropolitan State College of Denver

Heather A. Minges Wols, PhD, Columbia College Chicago

Cynthia Wright, PhD, Southern Utah University

Shahla M. Wunderlich, PhD, Montclair State University

Erika M. Zablah, Louisiana State University at Baton Rouge

Maureen Zimmerman, EdD, MPH, RD, Mesa Community College

Acknowledgments

e would like to thank the following people for their hard work and dedication. They have helped make this new edition a reality. A special thank you to Sean Fabery and our entire editorial staff from Jones & Bartlett Learning, including Taylor Maurice and Jennifer Angel. We would also like to acknowledge and express our thanks to Rachel DiMaggio for her production help, Andrea DeFronzo for marketing our texts, Shannon Sheehan for her assistance with the artwork, Merideth Tumasz for her photo research and permissions work, as well as Toni Ackley, copyeditor, and Susan Beckett, proofreader, for their exceptional assistance with content and grammar. We thank you all for your efforts, dedication, and guidance.

Thanks to Diane L. McKay, Emily Mohn, Carolyn Dunn, Brian Cook, Feon Cheng, Fabio Giallongo, and Tara LaRowe for their contributions to this edition. The authors would like to acknowledge Feon Cheng and Fabio Giallongo for their work updating the Test Bank, Instructor's Manual, and Slides in PowerPoint format, as well as Mackinnon Ross for her research assistance.

Finally, we would like to thank all of the instructors and students who were involved in the process of developing our introductory text for majors, *Nutrition*, without whose involvement the creation of *Discovering Nutrition* would not have been possible.

Chapter 1

Food Choices: Nutrients and Nourishment

Revised by Kimberley McMahon

THINK About It

- 1 What, if anything, might persuade or influence you to change your food preferences?
- 2 Are there some foods you definitely avoid? If so, do you know why?
- 3 How do you define nutrients?
- 4 How do you determine if the nutrition information you read is accurate?

CHAPTER Menu

- Why Do We Eat the Way We Do?
- Introducing the Nutrients
- Applying the Scientific
 Process to Nutrition
- From Research Study to Headline

onsider these scenarios. A group of friends goes out for pizza every Thursday night. A young man greets his girlfriend with a box of chocolates. A 5-year-old shakes salt on her meal after watching her parents do this. A man says hot dogs are his favorite food because they remind him of going to baseball games with his father. A parent punishes a misbehaving child by withholding dessert. What do all of these people have in common? They are all using food for something other than its nutrient value. Can you think of a holiday that is not celebrated with food? For most of us, food is more than a collection of nutrients. Many factors affect what we choose to eat. Many of the foods people choose are nourishing and contribute to good health. The same, of course, may be true of the foods we reject.

The science of **nutrition** helps us improve our food choices by identifying the amounts of nutrients we need, the best food sources of those nutrients, and the other components in foods that may be help-ful or harmful. The U.S. National Library of Medicine defines nutrition as the science of food; the nutrients and other substances therein; their action, interaction, and balance in relation to health and disease; and the processes by which we ingest, absorb, transport, utilize, and excrete food substances.¹ Learning about nutrition will help us to be informed and more likely to make good nutrition choices, which in turn may not only improve our health, but also reduce our risk of some diseases and may even help us to live longer. Keep in mind, though, that no matter how much you know about nutrition, you are still likely to choose some foods regardless of the nutrients they provide, simply for their taste or just because it makes you feel good to eat them.

Why Do We Eat the Way We Do?

Why Is This Important? Many different factors play a role in determining why we choose to eat certain foods and avoid others. Understanding the influence of these factors can shape the way we eat and help us make more healthful food choices.

LEARNING Objectives

- 1 Define nutrition.
- 2 List factors that influence food choices.
- 3 Describe the standard American diet.
- 4 List the six classes of nutrients essential for health.
- 5 Outline the basic steps in the nutrition research process.
- 6 Recognize credible scientific research and reliable sources of nutrition information.

nutrition The science of foods and their components (nutrients and other substances), including the relationships to health and disease (actions, interactions, and balances); processes within the body (ingestion, digestion, absorption, transport, functions, and disposal of end products); and the social, economic, cultural, and psychological implications of eating. Do you "eat to live" or "live to eat"? For all of us, the first is certainly true—you must eat to live. But there may be times when our enjoyment of food is more important to us than the nourishment we get from it. We use food to project a desired image, forge relationships, express friendship, show creativity, and disclose our feelings. We cope with anxiety or stress by eating or not eating; we reward ourselves with food for a good grade or a job well done; or, in extreme cases, we punish failures by denying ourselves the benefit and comfort of eating. Factors such as age, gender, genetic makeup, occupation, lifestyle, family, and cultural background can all affect our daily and habitual food choices. In this book we refer to these daily and habitual food choices as a person's "diet." Unless otherwise indicated, the term *diet* is not used to describe a regimen of eating and drinking for the purpose of weight loss, such as "dieting to lose weight," but rather the term *diet* will refer to daily and habitual food choices that a person makes.

Personal Preferences

What we eat reveals much about who we are. Food preferences begin early in life and then change as we interact with parents, friends, and peers. Further experiences with different people, places, and situations often cause us to expand or change our preferences. Taste and other sensory factors such as texture are some of the most important things that influence our food choices; cost and convenience are important, too.²

тнімк

1

Age is another factor in food choices. Consider taste preferences and how they might be influenced even before birth. Science shows that, when compared to adults, children naturally prefer higher levels of sweet and salty tastes and reject bitter tastes.³ This might help explain why children are drawn to more unhealthy food choices. In support of this idea, studies have found that sensory experiences, beginning early in life, can shape preferences in both a positive and a negative way. For example, an expecting mother who consumes a diet rich in healthy foods can help develop her child's taste preferences in a positive way because flavors from foods that the mother eats are transmitted to amniotic fluid and to mother's milk, creating an environment in which breastfed infants are more accepting of these flavors.⁴ In contrast, infants fed formula learn to prefer its unique flavor profile and may have more difficulty initially accepting flavors not found in formula, such as those of fruit and vegetables.⁵ Having healthy food experiences early in life may go a long way toward promoting healthy eating throughout a person's life span.

Although young children prefer sweet or familiar foods, babies and toddlers are generally willing to try new things. (See **FIGURE 1.1**.) Experimental evidence suggests that when children are repeatedly exposed to a variety of foods, they are more likely to accept those foods, thus adding more variety to their diet and eating more healthfully. This result is even stronger for children whose willingness to try new foods is encouraged by their caregivers.⁶

Preschoolers typically go through a period of food **neophobia**, a dislike for anything new or unfamiliar. School-age children tend to accept a wider array of foods, and teenagers are strongly influenced by the preferences and habits of their peers. If you track the kinds of foods you have eaten in the past year, you might be surprised to discover how few basic foods your diet includes. By the time we reach adulthood,



FIGURE 1.1 Adventures in eating. Babies and toddlers are willing to try new things, generally after repeat exposure. © Monkey Business Images/Shutterstock.

we have formed a core group of foods we prefer. Of this group, only about 100 basic items account for 75 percent of our food intake.

Like many aspects of human behavior, food choices are influenced by many interrelated factors.

Generally, hunger and satiety (the feeling of being full) dictate when we eat, but what we choose to eat is not always determined by physiological or nutritional needs. When we consider that our food preferences are also dictated THINK by factors such as sensory properties of foods (taste, smell, and texture), emotional and cogni-2 tive factors (habits, comfort/discomfort foods, food advertising and promotion, eating away from home, etc.), and environmental factors (economics, lifestyle, food availability, culture, religion, and socioeconomics), we can better understand why we choose to eat the foods that we do. (See FIGURE 1.2.)

Sensory Influences: Taste, Smell, and Texture

Sensory Influence Taste Smell Texture **Environmental Factors** Economic Lifestyle Food availability Culture Religion Geographic location Environment Social, Emotional, and **Cognitive Factors** Habits Food likes and dislikes Knowledge and attitudes related to diet and health

Personal values Comfort/discomfort foods Food marketing, advertising, and promotion Food and diet trends

FIGURE 1.2 Factors that affect food choices. We often select a food to eat automatically without thought. But in fact, our choices are complex events involving the interactions of a multitude of factors.

© Photodisc.

In making food choices, what appeals to our senses also contributes to our personal preferences. People often refer to flavor as a collective experience that describes both taste and smell. Texture also plays a part. You may prefer foods that have a crisp, chewy, or smooth texture. You may reject foods that feel grainy, slimy, or rubbery. Other sensory characteristics that affect food choice are color, moisture, and temperature.

We are familiar with the classic four tastes-sweet, sour, bitter, and salty-but do you know that there are more? One of these additional taste sensations is umami. Umami is a Japanese term used to describe the taste produced by glutamate.⁷ It is the brothy, meaty, savory flavor in foods such as meat, seafood, and vegetables. A seasoning commonly added to Chinese food, canned vegetables, soups, and processed meats, called monosodium glutamate (MSG), enhances this umami flavor. Despite many people identifying themselves as being sensitive to MSG, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) considers that adding MSG to foods is "generally recognized as safe." People who claim sensitivity report symptoms such as headache, flushing, sweating, and nausea; however, studies have not been able to consistently trigger these reactions.⁸

Emotional and Cognitive Influences

Habits

Your eating and cooking habits likely reflect what you learned from your parents. We typically learn to eat three meals a day, at about the same times each day. Quite often we eat the same foods, particularly for breakfast (e.g., cereal and milk) and lunch (e.g., sandwiches). This routine makes life convenient, and we don't have to think much about when or what to eat. But we don't have to follow this routine. How would you feel about eating mashed potatoes for breakfast and cereal for dinner? Some people might get a stomach-ache just thinking about

Quick Bite

Try it Again, You Just Might Like It

Studies have found that children between the ages of 2 and 6 years commonly dislike things that are new or unfamiliar. This is also the age when kids are most likely to reject vegetables. Kids have a better chance to overcome this tendency if they are repeatedly exposed to the food they initially reject—somewhere between 5 and 15 exposures should do it.

▶ **flavor** The collective experience that describes both taste and smell.

umami [ooh-MA-mee] A Japanese term that describes a delicious meaty or savory sensation. Chemically, this taste detects the presence of glutamate.

5



FIGURE 1.3 Comfort foods. Depending on your childhood food experiences, a bowl of traditional soup, a remembered sweet, or a mug of hot chocolate can provide comfort in times of stress.

© Jules Frazier/Photodisc/Getty Images.

it, whereas others may enjoy the prospect of doing things differently. Look at your eating habits and see how often you make the same choices every single day.

Comfort/Discomfort Foods

Our desire for particular foods often is based on behavioral motives, even though we may not be aware of them. For some people, food becomes an emotional security blanket. Consuming our favorite foods can make us feel better, relieve stress, and allay anxiety. (See **FIGURE 1.3**.) Starting with the first days of life, food and affection are intertwined. Breastfed infants, for example, experience physical, emotional, and psychological satisfaction when nursing. As we grow older, this experience is continually reinforced. For example, chicken soup and hot tea with honey may be favorites when we feel ill because someone had prepared those foods for us when we were not feeling well. If we were rewarded for good behavior with a particular food (e.g., ice cream, candy, cookies), our positive feelings about that food may persist for a lifetime.

In contrast, at some point you may have gotten sick soon after eating a certain food, and you still avoid that food.

Food Advertising and Promotion

Aggressive and sometimes deceptive advertising can influence a person's food-buying decisions; therefore, it may not surprise you that some of the most popular food purchases are high-fat and high-sugar baked goods and alcoholic beverages. According to the Federal Trade Commission (FTC), businesses spend \$9.6 billion annually marketing food and beverages, both on television and online. More than \$1.79 billion specifically targets children and adolescents, promoting items such as sugared breakfast cereals, fast food, and soft drinks.⁹ Exposure to food advertising increases the preference and purchase of the advertised foods, particularly by overweight or obese adults and children.¹⁰

Food and beverage advertising greatly influences children's eating behavior. Children and teens see about 12–16 TV advertisements per day for products generally high in saturated fat, sugar, and/or sodium.¹¹ One study suggests that advertising changes the way children consider the importance of taste when making food choices: after watching food commercials, children rely less on health values for their food choices, and instead place significantly more importance on taste.¹² In another study, children consumed 14% more high-sugar breakfast cereal for every 10 advertisements seen for that kind of cereal.¹³

Although the majority of food advertisements are for less healthy foods, positive food advertising also exists. We are seeing more innovative advertising that promotes locally grown, hormone- and pesticidefree foods, plus whole grains, nuts, berries, vegetarian foods, and other nutrient-dense products.

Eating Meals Prepared Outside the Home

In recent years there has been a general shift away from domestic cooking and toward the use of pre-prepared and ultra-processed foods. There has also been an upsurge in time and money devoted to dining out. In all, Americans spend almost half of their food budget on foods prepared away from home, however, they also underestimate the amount of calories and fat in these foods, which is likely contributing to increasing weight and obesity.¹⁴ This trend has promoted an increased interest in information on calories, fat, sodium, and other nutrients on menus. When calories are present on menus, people order foods with fewer calories compared to those ordering from menus without calories identified, and parents order foods with fewer calories for their children.¹⁵ The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has implemented guidelines in which nutrition labeling in chain restaurants and similar food establishments will provide consumers with clear and consistent nutrition information in a direct and accessible manner.

Food and Diet Trends

The popularity of different diets can influence changes in food product consumption. Beginning in the late 1980s, low-fat diets became popular and were accompanied by an explosion of reduced-fat, low-fat, and fat-free products. When the low-carbohydrate diet became

popular, there was a rise in low-carb and no-carb products. Diet and health-related products also compete for consumer dollars. For example, sales of gluten-free products in the United States continue to rise due to the increased diagnosis of celiac disease and the unproven belief that eliminating gluten, a protein found in wheat and related grains such as barley and rye, from the diet will treat other conditions as well. Some notable food trends of the last decade include organic foods, locally grown and prepared foods, fermented foods that contain live cultures, and "craft foods" that hail from a particular locale and claim to have unique tastes. Other trends relate more to our behaviors than particular foods, but they ultimately affect our food purchases; they include snacking throughout the day, using online grocery shopping and delivery services, using apps to calculate the exact nutritional content of meals, and shopping at supermarkets converted into socializing spaces. (See FIGURE 1.4.)

Social Factors

Social factors exert a powerful influence on food choice. Food is often at the center of family gatherings, social events, and office parties. Perhaps even more influential, though, are the messages from peers about what to eat or how to eat.

As **FIGURE 1.5** illustrates, eating is a social event that brings together people for a variety of purposes (e.g., religious or cultural celebrations, business meetings, family dinners). Social pressures, however, also can restrict our food intake and selection. We might, for example, order nonmeat dishes when dining with a group of vegetarian friends.

Knowledge of Health and Nutrition

Many people select and emphasize certain foods they think are "good for them." (See **FIGURE 1.6**.) Consumer health beliefs, perceptions of disease susceptibility, and desires to take action to prevent or delay disease onset can have powerful influences



FIGURE 1.4 Food and Diet Trends. Online grocery shopping and delivery are becoming popular across the United States. © J.D. Maman/Shutterstock.



FIGURE 1.5 Social facilitation. Interactions with others can affect your eating behaviors. © Fuse/Thinkstock.



FIGURE 1.6 Where do you get your nutrition information? We are constantly bombarded by food messages. Which sources do you find most influential? Are they also the most reliable?

© Jones & Bartlett Learning. Photographed by Sarah Cebulski.

on diet and food choices. For example, people who feel vulnerable to disease and believe that dietary change might lead to positive results are more likely to pay attention to information about links among dietary choices, dietary fat, and health risks. A desire to lose weight or alter one's physical appearance also can be a powerful force shaping decisions to accept or reject particular foods. Furthermore, consumers are placing a higher priority on foods for health and seeking foods with more protein, less sugar, and minimal processing.¹⁶

How nutrition information is delivered to consumers may also play a role in food choices. One study that compared the type of nutrition information provided, education levels, and obesity predominance in three different countries (France, Canada, and the United States) supported the idea that a "scientific" or nutrient-based approach to food might not result in the most beneficial food choices, indicating that in these instances consumers lose sight of the big picture. It has been suggested that nutrition education that focuses on overall results, or how current nutrition decisions will effect overall health, may lead to better overall food choices.¹⁷

Key Concepts Many factors influence our decisions about what to eat and when to eat. Some of the main factors include personal preferences such as taste, texture, and smell; our habits with eating; the emotional connections of comfort or discomfort that are linked to certain foods; advertisements and promotions; whether we choose to eat our meals at home or away from home; and knowledge of health and nutrition. The cultural environment in which people live also has a major influence on what foods they choose to eat.

Environment

Your environment—where you live, how you live, whom you live with has a lot to do with what you choose to eat. People around us influence our food choices, and we generally prefer the foods we grew up eating. Environmental factors that influence our food choices include economics, food availability, culture, and religion. In the United States, our environment and the choices we make play a significant role in the current obesity epidemic. We live in what has been termed an **obesogenic environment**; in other words, an environment that promotes gaining weight and one that is not conducive to weight loss within the home or workplace.¹⁸

Economics

Where you live not only influences which foods are most accessible to you, but also affects food costs, which are a major determinant of food choice. You may have "lobster taste" but a "hot dog budget." The types of foods purchased and the percentage of income used for food are affected by total income. Households spend more money on food when incomes rise. In 2014, middle income families spent an average of \$5,992 on food, representing about 13 percent of income, whereas the lowest income households spent an average of \$3,667 on food, representing 34 percent of income.¹⁹ Rising food prices and falling incomes put pressure on food budgets. How much does it cost to follow dietary recommendations? For adults on a 2,000-calorie diet, the cost of meeting the *2015–2020 Dietary Guidelines for Americans* recommendations for fruit and vegetable consumption is \$2.00 to \$2.50 per day, according to an analysis by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA).²⁰

obesogenic environment Circumstances in which a person lives, works, and plays in a way that promotes the overconsumption of calories and discourages physical activity and calorie expenditure.

Food Availability

Poor access to healthy, nutritious foods can negatively affect food choices, and therefore health and well-being. Approximately 23.5 million Americans, including 6.5 million children, live in nutritional wastelands commonly referred to as **food deserts**.²¹ Food deserts are low-income areas where residents lack access to a supermarket or large grocery store to buy affordable fruits, vegetables, whole grains, low-fat milk, and other foods that make up the full range of a healthy diet.²²

Not only do many people who live in food deserts lack the ability to get fresh, healthy, and affordable foods easily, but they often rely on "quick markets" that offer a lot of highly processed, high-sugar, and high-fat foods. Their communities often lack healthy food providers, such as grocery stores and farmers' markets. In these neighborhoods, food needs typically are served by inexpensive restaurants and convenience stores, which offer few fresh foods.

Cultural Influences

One of the strongest influences on food preferences is tradition or cultural background. In all societies, no matter how simple or complex, eating is the primary way of initiating and maintaining human relationships.

To a large extent, culture defines our attitudes. "One man's food is another man's poison." Look at **FIGURE 1.7**. How does the photo make you feel? Insects, maggots, and entrails are delicacies to some, whereas just the thought of ingesting them is enough to make others cringe. Cultural forces are so powerful that if you were permitted only a single question to establish someone's food preferences, a good choice would be "What is your ethnic background?" (See the FYI feature "Food and Culture.")

Knowledge, beliefs, customs, and habits all are defining elements of human culture. Although genetic characteristics tie people of ethnic groups together, culture is a learned behavior and, consequently, can be modified through education, experience, and social and political trends.²⁴

In many cultures, food has symbolic meanings related to family traditions, social status, and even health. In fact, many folk remedies rely on food. Some of these have gained wide acceptance, such as the use of spices and herbal teas for purposes ranging from allaying anxiety to preventing cancer and heart disease. Just as cultural distinctions eventually blur when ethnic groups take part in the larger American culture, so do many of the unique expectations about the ability of certain foods to prevent disease, restore health among those with various afflictions, or enhance longevity. However, food habits may be among the last practices to change when an immigrant adapts to a new culture.

Religion

Food is an important part of religious rites, symbols, and customs. Some religious rules apply to everyday eating, whereas others are concerned with special celebrations. Christianity, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and Islam, for example, all have distinct dietary laws, but within each religion different interpretations of these laws give rise to variations in dietary practices.

Social-Ecological Model

The social-ecological model included in the 2015–2020 Dietary Guidelines for Americans is designed to illustrate how individual factors, environmental settings, various sectors of influence, and social and food deserts Low income areas where it is difficult to purchase food that is fresh, of good-quality, and affordable.

Quick Bite

Bad Food Habits Are Hard to Break

Bad habits like eating while watching TV, eating in the car, skipping breakfast, or eating too quickly are easy to develop and hard to break. But being aware of your behavior can help you take some steps toward positive change. For example, if you are guilty of eating too quickly, slow down, relax, chew your food, and enjoy the taste of what you are eating. It takes about 20 minutes for your stomach to tell your brain that it is full. If you wait to stop eating until you actually feel full, you have already overeaten!



FIGURE 1.7 Cultural influences. If you were visiting China, would you sample the local delicacy—deep-fried scorpion?

© DK. Khattiya/Alamy Images.

Quick Bite

Nerve Poison for Dinner?

The puffer fish is a delicacy in Japan. Danger is part of its appeal; eating a puffer fish can be life threatening! The puffer fish contains a poison called tetrodotoxin (TTX), which blocks the transmission of nerve signals and can lead to death. Chefs who prepare the puffer fish must have special training and licenses to prepare the fish properly, so diners feel nothing more than a slight numbing feeling.